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LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

The directors present the strategic report for the year ended 30 June 2021,

Tha business model
The principal activity of the company and the group is the development and sale of retirement accommodation.

Review of the group’s business

In the year ended 36 Jurie 2021, group tumaover was £101.2m (2020: £89.5m), representing 127 home sales (2020;
123) and 'and sales of £19.6m (2020: £11.6m). In 2021, sales continued to be impacted negatively by cavid, restricting
visits and delaying the conveyancing process. The stamp duty incentive was a welcome hoost and helped underpin
and accelerate some completions, but not enough to make a significant impact an the year's results. The group's
aperating loss for the year from continuing operations was £49.7m (2020: £56.0m). An impairment review of sites
was undertaken and resulted in an impaimment charge of £20.1m (2020: £32.6m). This impairment arose as a result
of a strategic decision on a historic where a change of use was agreed on a premium site, as well as historic build
rectification costs and reductions in forecast sales prices.

The results reflect the second year since the operational merger with Anthology Group and completes the transition
periad in the strategic plan. During this period, the business model has been re-set. Significant time and resources
have been employed 1o bring our homes lo the exacting standards we sel, specifically dealing with legacy supply
issues. We are proud of the product that bears the ‘Lifestory’ name and cur customers have seen first-hand the
dedication of the team to ensure their homes are at the highest standard. This final stage of remediation work has
had a negalive bearing on the financial results for the group during this period, but it has been our highest priority
expenditure and any works of this nature are fully accounted for in the year.

Customer service and choice remains at the heart of our operations. It is particularly pleasing to see the increased
interest to the expanded rental proposition that is now offered, which provides our new custamers real choice, with
the oplion to purchase, 1o rent, or to rent before purchase. This reflects the work we have done to constantly challenge
the business lo provide the very best experience through the sales joumey and then the post sales community, which
is carefully supported by the Lifestory hosts. The rental portfolio has been well received by the market and has now
grown to B9 homes at the year-end {2020: 29).

The rationalisation of the portfglio has also continued, with the sale of iand bank sites that did not meet the new return
aspirations set for investment. Those sales included land at Weybridge, Tunbridge Wells, Windlesham and Sutton
Coldfield. The completed development at Sevenoaks was 50ld to a specialist care provider in December 2020 and
since the balance sheet date, the 126-home development in Portishead achieved planning for a ehange of use and
the sate completed on 13 September 2021 to a housing association. Looking ahead, the site at Guildford is in conlract
for sale and Sidmouth is under offer. This will then condude the land bank changes identified.

The next phase of the stralegy is to continue building for the future, with a very focussed land purchase strategy that
is well under way. In the year we had sites exchanged at Maidenhead and Solihull. Since the year end, the purchase
of sites at Lichfield and Lymingion were completed. Together these represent a new pipeline of developments that
seed the beginning of the future investment for growth. The group is actively looking for naw land across the country,
with a clear remit on scale, location and retums to ensure we deliver great homes for our future customers, whilst
establishing a highly accrelive business model that will drivae future sustainable profit.

Trading since the lockdown restrictions were lifted in the early summer has picked up significantly, with a fantastic
positive reaction to the numerous events and marketing that have showcased the Lifestory developments. The visitor
rates since the balance sheet date are now consistently above the pre-pandemic level and this has 'ed to reservations
that support our target for the new financial year.

On 29 January 2021 OCM Luxembourg Pegasus Haoldings S.A.R.L., capitalised £294 857,000 in loans to new share
capital, this showed the parent company's commitment to supporting the group. As part of the ordinary treasury
operations of business there were loan facilities entered into during the year with sister group, Anthology Group
Limited for £42.000,000, and Daiwa Capital Markets Europe Limited for £9,475,000.

Hackwood Homes Limited, a subsidiary company of Lifestory Group by way of an option to control it, appointed
administrators on 4 March 2021, The company is working with the administrators to understand the next steps for this
business. The administration has had an insignificant impact to the group.




LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Key performance indicators

Year ended 30 Year ended 30

June 2021 June 2020

Hunes sold 127 123
Operating loss from continuing activities {£49.7m) (£56.0m)
Sites acquired during the year - 3
At 30 June 2021 At 30 June 2020

Sharehalders' funds/(deficit) £134.2m (£69.86m)
Employees {average) 160 213
Completed sites 25 24
Sites under construction 6 7
Undeveloped sites g 15
Total sites 40 46
Landbank homes completed 521 512
Landbank homes under construction 241 258
Landbank homes in the pipeline 279 407
Totat landbank homes 1,041 1177
GDV pipeline at year end £695m £812m

Homes sold, sites acquired, and the operating loss are discussed in the review of the group’s business. Shareholders'
funds have increased significantly during the year with the capitalisation of £284,857,000 from the parent company
loan, which offset the loss for the year. In the year total sites and undeveloped sites have decreased due to the sale
of siles and selling out sites. Completed sites ingreased by one and sites under construction decreased by one as
sites campleted during the year, offset by selling oul sites, and some undeveloped sites beginning construction.

The number of homes in the pipeline, total landbank homes, and GDV pipeline have all reduced as stock has sold
through and no new sites were purchased in the year. Completed homes have increased slightly, in line with
completed sites. Landbank homes under construclion has increased as work has commenced on previously
undeveloped sites. Since the balance sheet date, the pipeline has been building with new site acquisitions, as
discussed in the review of the group's business, and this will continue to be the stralegy.

Employee numbers have decreased during the year due to the derecognition of Hackwood Homes Limited and a
reduction in recruitment during Govemment lockdowns, this is somewhat offset by staff being transferred into the
group from sister company, Anthelogy Group Limited. The derecognition of Hackwood Homes has resulted in a
decrease of 36 employees companed to the prior year. The directars are dedicated to developing our employees and
supporting them to undertake a variety of training and development activities and measure the impact of these on the
individual's and company’s parformance. .

Funding and going concern

On 4 July 2019, the group completed a £525m, 5-year loan facility with a syndicate of lenders including Sculptor
Petrel Investment S.a.r.|, AIG and Lloyds Bank, This facility has been operating throughout the financial year and the
group has remained covenant compliant throughout the reporting period and lo the reporting date and fo the date at
which this report is signed.

The business has experienced a long period of expansion, which has been fully supported by its parent company,
Oaktree European Principal Fund . This has been further underwritten by the £294.8m conversion of its
intercompany loan into equity on 29 January 2021, providing a significant boost to the net asset value of the business
from this peint.




LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Funding and going concern {continued)
The business constantly monitors its funding position against the forward-looking plan to ensure there is sufficient
headroom and this is done with the full visibility and input by the Fund.

On 9 March 2021, the business entered into a £35m loan agreemant with its sister company, Anthology Group Limited
and on 25 June 2021 this facility was increased to £42m, of which £17m had been drawn at the year end. This loan
is unsaecured and repayable on 8 March 2024. On 7 December 2021 the facility was increased to £62.0m, with a
further £41m drawn in the period to 31 January 2022,

On 23 June 2021, the group entered into a £9.48m ioan facility agreement with Daiwa Capital Markets Europe Limited.
It is a 15-month facility, is secured against certain land within the group.

At the date of this report, when sensitising the cash flow forecast for the reasonably possible worst-case scenario, a
further £27m of funds is expected to be required in the foreseeable future to support the continued growth of the
husingss and te also ensure liquidity and covenants are being met.

Within the Lifestory Group there are certain expected funding events aver the next 12 months that had not yet been
concluded at the date of signing this report, further information on these can be found in the going concern section of
the directers’ report.

These matters are all in the normal course of trading for the group and reflect the ongeing treasury aclivities al the
current point in time. The business is very experienced in closing these transactions and considers all of these items
to be low risk. As a result, the directors believe that the going concem basis of preparation is appropfiate in thase
financial statements. However, given these have nol yet concluded at the date of approval of these financial
statements, they, in combination, create a materal uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the group and
company’s ability ta continue as a going concern which in turn may resull in the group and cormpany being unable to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the nomal course of business.

Events after the reporting date
Cn 13 September 2021 the 126-home development in Portishead achieved planning far a change of use and was
sold to a housing assaciation for £27,800,000.

On 16 September 202t 41 rented properties were transferred for a value of £15,000,000 to a newly formed business
outside of the Lifestory group but with a common ultimate parent company. At the same time a framework agreement
was completed to allow all future rented hames to be transfered to this same entity, subject to certain criteria being
met. The letting agency business operated by Lifestory will continue to provide letting services for the puichaser.

On 14 QOctober 2021 the group completed the acquisition an a site in Lymington for £4,800.000.

On 15 October 2021 the group completed a development loan for three sites at Bath, Woobum Green, and Cranleigh,
with Cheyne Capitai Limited with a facility totalling £40,000,000 with a repayment date of April 2024.

On 29 Navember 2021 the graup completed the acquisition an a site in Lichfield for £2,900,000.

On 7 December 2021, the comparny increased the facility with sister company, Antheiogy Group Limited to
£62,000,000.

On @ February 2022 the Midas group entered administration. Midas was a main contractor for one of our completed
sites however only rectification work remained outstanding, and management has assessed that the impact to the
group is insignificant, and the works will be completed by Lifestory on a construction management basis.




LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Principat risks and uncertainties
Risk: Planning df!ays { failure to get consent

Mitigation
« Conditional confracts or fali-back positions including the sale of land
+  As business matures, individual site delays have less impact on overall performance
* No start on site until KPI targel enquirias / reservations hit

Risk: Build cost inflation / surety of supply

Mitigation

Altemative forms of construction being reviewed

Mix of procurement methods utifised such as two-stage tendering and construction management
Explore new connections with mid-sized construction companies for ongoing programme: of work

Use of fixed price contracts whara appropriate

Risk: Market slowdown
Mitigation
« Selling off-plan extends sales pericd and gives visibility of pipeline
Alternative structures: rent to buy, assured fenaney rental

s Work with Part Exchange providers
» Site appraisals and forecast margins allow for reductions in revenues without causing losses to be made

Risk: Retention of high performing talent

Mitigation
* Appropriate reward structures where employees can benefit from vaiue created

RIsk: Covid 19
Mitigation
« Current plans are in place to deal with the govermnment guidelines on Covid 19. Plans will evolve according
to changing requirements and conditions

5172 statement
5172 statement is prasented on pages 5-7.

and authorised for issue by the board and signed on its behaif by:

Mr Mark Dickinson
Director
17 March 2022




LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
S$172 STATEMENT

Directors are required to explain how they consider the interests of key stakeholders and the broader matters set out
in section 172(1) (A) to (F) of the Companies Act 2006 ('S172’} when performing their duty to promote the success of
the company and the group under $172. This includes considering the interest of other stakeholders which will have
an impact on the long-term success of the company and the group.

The S172 statement explains who the company's and the group's stakeholder groups are, their material issues and
how the directors of Lifestory Group engage with them, and the effect of that regards, including on the principal
decisions taken by the campany and the group during the financial year. The 5172 statement focuses on matters of
strategic importance to Lifestory Group, and the level of information disclosed is consistent with the size and the
complexity of the business.

When making decisions, each director ensures that he/she acts in the way he/she considers, in good faith, would
most likely promote the company’s and the group's success for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in doing
80 have regard {among other matters) to

$172(1) {A) The likely consequences of any decision in the long term:

The directars and senior management are supporied by an information system that provides timely alerts to matters
impacting the business in the short and longer term. This covers all aspects of the operations from health and safety
on site, procurement, delivery and sales. The information is used to make the right decisions {0 ensure the best
outcomes in all of these areas and generally, the operations of the group and company.

On an annual basis a 5-year plan is approved by the board and the performance against this plan is monitored closely,
with rolling profit and cash flow projections produced monihly. This identifies, from a financial and cash management
perspective, where actions can be taken to optimise the outcomes.

There is a depth of knowledge within the business that ensures the likely impact of extemnai factors is minimised, but
this is alsc supported with active engagement acrass the business with key stakeholders including the planning
authorities, industry bodies, financing stakeholders, investors, the supply chain and our customers.

The directors use all of this information to avoid negative impact of decisions on its stakeholders and to continually
build its reputation as a market leader in customer sarvice, design and quality.

$5172(1) (B) The interests of Lifestory Group’s employees:

Lifestory Group’s employees are core to the business and fundamental to its lang-term success. Significant efforts
are made to ensure that Lifestory Group remains a responsible employer from pay and benefits to health, safety and
workplace environment. The business actively pursues a practice of gender equality and diversity that reflects society.

The group invests in its empioyees through a development programme including leadership training, apprenticeships,
and specific skills training. The employees are actively encouraged to discuss devefopment needs; and these are
factored into the annua! review process, to ensure they are captured and actioned.

The group is also proud to have run its graduate recruitment programme for many years and strongly believes in
providing the future generations the opportunity to build their careers in the business and set them up 10 succeed. At
the date of the signing of this report 7% of the workforce is on a graduate or apprenticeship programme, the goal is
for this figure to reach 10%. ‘

Regular communication is essential and is a key part of the Lifestory approach. A weekly group-wide newsietter is
produced, and the Chief Executive presents group updates to all employees every two months. There is also an
annual employee survey which provides the team a chance to give honest feedback and is used to inform direction
for the future. {n the iatest susvey, it was very pleasing to see that over 90% wauld recommend Lifestory as a great
place to work.




ILIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
$172 STATEMENT {CONTINUED)

Underdying the day-to-day team management is a very clear set of policies on health and safety, anti-bribery, anti-
money laundering and modern slavery. The processes are clearly defined to support these policies and regular
training is performed across the business.

$172(1) (C) The need to foster Lifestory Group's business relationships with suppfiers, customers and others
and §172{1) (D) The impact of Lifestory Group’s operations on the community and the environment:

Strang and mutually beneficial relationships with suppliers, customers and government are fundamental pillars for
Lifestory Group’s operational success. The group seeks the promotion and application of certain general principles in
such relationships. The ability to promote these principles effectively is an impaortant factor in the decision to enter
into or remain in such relationships. In particular:

Customers
« An ethos of listening to our customers’ needs are at the heart of the trust that is built with our customers.

« Encouraging engagement with the community which they are entering before a purchase is compfeted.
s Offering clear guidance an the purchase, so our customers are fully supported in their decision making.
» Supporting the conveyancing, sales progression and mcve to make the process as easy as possible.

« Offer a simple choice between purchase or rental.

Partner and suppliers
« Tendering to ensure equal opportunities for suppliers and best commercial outcome for the business.

« Health and safety control programs to improve safety across the value chain.

Government and regulators
» Maintaining regular dialogue with government and engaging in policy debates that are of concern to Lifestory
Group and the communities in which it operates.
= Maintaining an active role in industry groups that present industry views to government.

Society and environment

+ Continuous monitoring of environmental management through robust design principles that ensure the
homes are built to sustainable standards. .

» Full compliance with the current regulations.

+ Selecting contractors that have a strong track record of being considerate to the neighbourhood during
construction.

« Engaging with our customers to explain the environmental features of their homes, so thal they can minimise
the impact on the environment.

« Engaging with local communities through social medial, community workshops and training.

« Supperting local community social and charitable programmas as part of our marketing approach and local
engagement.

$172(1) (E) The desirability of Lifestory Group maintaining a reputation for high standards of business

conduct:
The directors sel the highest standards of governance to ensure the business operates in a responsible manner and

ensures its reputation and trust of its stakeholders is not questioned.

Regular communication amongst the board and employees, togethar with affective, formally recorded board meetings,
engure such standards are maintained. Where approprate, independent legal advice is obtained to suppon the
decision-making process. The directors also receive training on an annual basis to refresh their knowledge on latest

requirements.




LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
$172 STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

$172(1) (F) The need ta act fairly between members of the company and the group:

The directers are responsible for choosing the course of actions which enables Lifestory Group to achieve its long-
term strategy, taking into consideration the impact on stakeholders. In doing so, the directors act fairly between the
company’s and the group’s members. This approach is also further enhanced with a majority of the directors being
representatives of the parent undertaking.

For further details on key decisions made in the year please see the review of thé group’s business on page 1.




LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

The directors present their annual report and audited financial statements for the year anded 30 June 2021.

Disclosure of the future developments of the group and events after the reporting date is given in the Strategic report.
Information an the group’s considerations towards key stakehoiders can be found in the 5172 statements, Information
on the group's financial risk management objectives is provided in note 26 to these financial statements.

Directars
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signature of the financial statements were as

follows:

Mr Mark Dickinson

Ms Alison Endemano

Mr Stefano Mazzoli

Mr David Simpsan

Mr James Van Steenkiste

Results and dividends
The results for the year are set out on page 16.

No ordinary dividends were paid (2020: £nil). The directors do not recommend payment of a further dividend.

Qualifying third party iIndemnity provisions
The company provided qualifying third-party indemnity provisions to certain directors during the financial year and at

the date of this report.

Greenhouse gas emission reporting
This section bas been prepared in accordance with our regulatory obligation to report greenhouse gas (GHG)
emissions pursuant to the large and medium-size companies and groups (accounts and reports) regulations 2008 as

amended.

During the reperting period 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021, our annual quantity of emissions in tonnes of carbon dioxide
resulting from the purchase of fuel, eiectricity, heat, steam, or cooling consumed in the operation of our vehicles and
offices was 330,969 kWh (2020: 655,442 kWh)} being 102.27 tCO2e (2020, 202.57 tCO2e), of this, Scope 1 emissions
represented 286,323 kwh and 88.47 tCO2e. As a measure of efficiency, the company intensity ratio is the number of
employses over carben dicxide consumed which is a ratio of 0.64 tCO2e (2020: 0.95 tCOZe) per employee. Due to
a reorganisation which saw staff transferred from sister company Anthology Group Limited it is more appropriate to
use a combined figure for the Lifestory and Anthology groups, which gives a 0.7 t{COZe {2020: 1.0 tCO2e) per
employee, reflecting an improvement in the group trave! pelicy as well as a reduced footprint due te less office use
during the Covid-19 lockdown penods.

The company has made assumptions and estimations in calculating the emissions output. This included using a 2020
assessment produced to comply with the Energy Saving Opportunity Scheme (ESOS) Regulation 2014, The
methodology used fo determine the emissions output was a blend of benchmarking, extrapolating figures and
obtaining meterage readings to calculate a reasonable estimate of the company's energy profile. These calculations
are prepared by an energy consultancy company and were used as a basis for the current financial year reperling.

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others
The group’s practices for the engagement with suppliers, customers and others is given within the Section 172

statement.




LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Employee involvement

The company promotes equal oppartunities and oppartunities by applying procedures and practices as set out in our
equal opportunities policy covering disabled people. The company will not discriminate in opportunities for recruitment,
fraining, and promotion. The company seeks fo continually develop and improve its workforce and is dedicated to
developing its employees and supporting them to undertake a variety of training and development activities and
measures the impact of these on the individual's and company's performance.

Going concern

in assessing the going concern position of the group and company, the directors have conducted a rigorous
assessment of the group’s ability to operate for the foreseeable future, This assessment included an in-depth review
of the group cash flow forecasls taking into consideration the latest operating envircnment. A base case scenario was
prepared against which the directors expect to deliver, over which a number of downside sensitivities were overlaid
to forecast the impact of reasonably possible outcomes. In order to address the reasonably worst-case scenario and
to support continued growth of the business, the directors have determined that a further £27m of funding is required
in the foreseeable future.

In consideration of the mitigations available to the Group, the Directors acknowiedge that the group has a £62m loan
facility with its sister company, Anthology Group Limited. The loan term is 3 years and ends in March 2024, On 30
June 2021 the loan was E17m, and up to 28 February 2022 a further £44m had been drawn, bringing the loan balance
to £61m. At the date of this report there have been no further drawdowns. The directors, who are common to both
groups, with two of Anthology Group's directors also being Lifestory Group directors, will manage the flow of funds
from Anthology Group Limited to Lifestory Group Limited. This will provide up to £1m of additional funding for Lifestory
Group Limited under the inter-group facility. The directors have assessed the ability of Anthology Group Limited,
through sensitised cash fiow forecasts, to provide the required level of cash funding as and when required by Lifestory
Group Limited. The directors were satisfied that sufficient funding would be available as required.

Further funding is expected within Lifestory Group from certain funding events over the next 12 months that have not
yet been concluded at the date of signing this report. Those events are:

« the completion of a £50.0m development loan for three new sites in Lifestory Group Limited that supports the
delivery of these sites over the next 18 months. At the date of this report, terms have been agreed with the
lender far this facility and will be subject to lender diligence and credit committee approval. This is expected
te complete within 1 month of the date of this report

+ The sale of rental properties totalling £30.5m to a UK entity which is under common control within the Fund
managed by Oaktree European Principal Fund lil. This is expected to complete within 1 month of the date of
this report.

« A £24.0m refinance of a completed development, with & stock loan replacing developer finance. Loan terms
from lenders have been received and the facility is expected to be in place within 2 months of the date of this
report.

s Adevelopment loan to be put in place which will refease £10.5m of funding. The development loan is for five
new sites in Lifestory Group Limited that supports the delivery of these sites over the next 18 months. At the
date of this report, terms are being discussed with lenders.

These maiters are all in the normal course of trading for the group and reflect the ongoing freasury activities at the
current point in time. The business is very experienced in closing these transactions and considers all of these items
to be low risk. As a result, the directors believe that the going concem basis of preparation is appropriate in these
financial statements. However, given these have not yet concluded at the date of approval of these financial
statemants, they, in combination, create a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the group and
company’s ability to continue as a going concemn which in tum may result in the group and company being unable to
realise its assets and discharge its Rabilities in the normal course of business.

Auditor
Deloitte LLP has expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditor and appropriate arrangements have been
put in piace for them to be deemed re-appointed as auditor in the absence of an annuai generai meeting.




LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Statement of disclosure to auditor

So far as each person who was a director at the dale of approving this report is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the auditar of the campany is unaware, Additionally, the directors individually have taken all tha
necessary steps that they ought to have taken as directors in ordar to make themselves aware of all relevant aydit
information and to establish that the audtior of the company is aware of that information. This confirnation is given
and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of 5418 of the Companies Act 2006.

ed and authorised for issue by the beard and signed an its behalf by:

Mr Mark Dickinson
Director

17 March 2022
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LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations,

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under thai law the
directors have elecled to prepare the group financial statements in accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and the parent campany finsncial
stalements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law), including FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework™. Under company law the
directors must not approve the financial stalements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the group and the company and ot the profit or loss of the group and company for that period.

In preparing the parent company financial statements, the directors are required to:

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them cansistently;

+ make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

« prepare the financial statemenls on the going concermn basis unless it is inappropriale to presume that the
company will continue in business.

In preparing the group financial statements, Intemational Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors:

+ properly select and apply accounting policies;

» present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, retiable, comparable
and understandable information;

« provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particuiar iransactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s
financial position and financial performance; and

» make an assessment of the company's ability to continue as a going concem.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate acoounting recerds that are sufficient to show and explain the
company's transactiens and disclose with reasonable accuracy a any time the financial position of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statéments comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets af the company and hence for taking reasonabie steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other imegularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financiai information included on
the company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom goveming the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legisiation in other jurisdictions

11



LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED

QOpinion
In our opinion;

+ the financial staternents of Lifestory Group Limited {the ‘parent company') and its subsidiaries {the 'group"}
give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company's affairs as at 30 June 2021
and of the group's loss for the year then ended;

» the group financial statements have peen properly prepared in accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006;

s the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepled Accounting Practice, including Financiat Reporting Standard 101 "Reduced Disciosure
Framework"; and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

+ the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

« the consolidated and parent company statements of financiai position;
« the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity;
+ the consolidated statement of cash flows; and

« the related notes 1 to 33.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements is
applicable law and international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements
is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reparting Standard 101 "Reduced
Disclosure Framework" (United Kingdom Generalty Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basls for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (UK)) and applicable law,
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the

financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requiremants that are
refevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's {the 'FRC's")
Ethical Standard, and we have fuifilied our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 1 in the financial statements, which indicates that there are cartain expected funding events
required to take place in the next 12 months that had not yet been concluded at the date of signing this report. As
stated in note 1, these events or conditions, along with the other matters as set forth in note 1, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the group’s and company's ability to continue as a going concern.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate,

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sactions of this report.
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' LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED

Other information

The other information compriges the information included in the annual repon, other than the financial statements and
our auditor's report thareon. The directors are responsible for the other information within the annual report. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except fo the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the ather information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such malerial inconsistencies or apparent malerial misstatements, we are required to
defermine whether this gives rise to a there is a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If,
based an the work we have perfarmed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this ather information,
we are required lo report that fact.

We have nothing te report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully ir the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are respansibie for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intema! confrol as the
directors datermine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial staterments, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concem basis of accounting unless the girectors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company crto cease
aperations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or eror, and to issue an auditor's repart that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of assurance; but is not 2 quarantee thal an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UX) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of ugers taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www. fre.org.ul/auditorsrespansibilities, This description farms part of aur auditor's repart.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined abave, 1o detect matesial misstatements in respect of irreqularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting iregularities, including fraud is detaifed below.

We considered the nature of the group’s industry and ils control environment, and reviewed the group’s
documentatien of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We also
enquired of management about their own identification and assessment of the risks of imegularities.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the group operates in, and identified the
key laws and regulations that:
« had a direct effecl on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
These included UK Companies Act, pensions Jegisiation and tax legislation; and

13



LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED

« do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the
group's ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty. Thess included construction and environmental
regulations.

We discussed among the audit engagement team regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the
organigation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements,

As a rasult of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following area, and aur specific
procedures performed to address it are described below:
¢ The camrying value of inventories as a result of impairment due to estimation applied in forecast costs to
complete and expected selling prices. We agreed construction costs to complete to third party cost forecasts;
challengad the other costs to complete based on past performance and other extemal evidence, and
challenged forecast selling prices for developments in light of historical prices achieved, reservations agreed
and recent open market selling prices achieved in the locale of the development.

In cormmon with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk
of management ovemide. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested the
appropriateness of journal entries and cther adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making
accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any significant
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the fotiowing:

¢ reviewing financial staterment disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial stalements;

« performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks
of material misstatement due o fraud;

s enquiring of management and in-house legal counsel conceming actual and potential litigation and claims,
and instances of nan-compliance with laws and regulations; and .

= reading minutes of meetings of those chamed with governance.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

QOpinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the strategic report and the directers’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

e the strategic report and the directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their environment
abtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified any matenal misstatements in the strategic report or the

directors’ report.
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LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT {CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the Tollowing matters if, in our opinion:

s«  adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or relums adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

» the parent company financial statements are nat in agreerment with the accounting recerds and returns; or

»  certszin disclosures of direclors' remuneration specified -by law are nat made; or

= we have not raceived all the information and explanations we require for our avdit.

‘We have nothing to report in respect aof these mattars.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Comparnies Act 2006. Cur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those
matlers we are required 1o state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility 1o anyone other than the company and the company's members
as a body, for our audit work, for this repor, or for the opinions we have formed.

i

James Wright FCA (Senior statutory auditor}
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom

17 March 2022
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LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Notes

2021 2020

£'000 £000
Continuing aperations
Revenue 4 101,216 89,466
Cost of sales {103,957) (90,876)
Impairment of inventories 6 {20,074) (32,555)
Gross loss . (22,815) {33,965)
Administrative expenses {30,758) {22,952)
Other operating income 5 3,921 838
Operating loss [} (49,652) (65,979)
Finance costs 11 {39,849) {47,522)
Loss before taxation (89,501) {103,501)
Tax on loss 12 (430) 892
Loss from continuing operations (89,931} (102,609}
Discontinued operations
Loss on discontinued operations 13 (982) (962)
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the financial year (90,913) (103,571)

Total comprehensive joss from continuing operations is attributable to:
- Owners of the parent company (89,931} (102,609)
- Non-controlling interests - -

{86,931} {102,609)
Total comprehensive loss from discontinued operations is attributable to:
- Owners of the parent company (368) 2,207
- Non-controlling interests (614) (3.169)

{982) (962)

The accompanying notes on pages 24 - 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2021
Consclidated Notes 2021 2021 2020 2020
£'000 £°000 £'000 £'000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 159 1,074
Investment properties 15 33,869 42,630
Right of use assets 25 774 1885
Deferred tax asset 27 - 500
34,802 16,189
Current assets
Inventones 20 513,458 602,137
Trade and other receivables P4l 8,646 6,166
Cash and cash equivalents 27,439 9,421
549,543 617,724
Total assets 584,345 633,913
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 (34,368) (27.,322)
Leases 25 {226) (103)
(34,592) (27.425)
Non-current Fabilities
Loans and borrowings 24 (401,716} [660,743)
Leases 25 (568) (1,923)
Other payables 23 {13,250) {13,250)
Deferred tax liability 27 - (154)
(415,534) (676,070}
Total liabilities (450,126) {703,495)
Net assets/(liabilities) 134,219 {69,582)

————

17



LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
AS AT 30 JUNE 2021

Consolidated Notes 2021 2020

£000 £°000
Eguity attributable to owners of the parent
company
Share capital 28 - -
Share premium 28 294,857 -
Gapital contribution i 280,000 260,000
Retained eamings 28 (440,638) (350,339}
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 134,219 {70.339)
company
Non-controliing interest - %7
Total aquity 134,219 {69,582)

The accompanying notes on pages 24 - 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

nancial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised Tor issue on 17 March 2022 and are
on its behalf by:

Mr Mark Dickinson
Director
Company Reglstration No. 08221003
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LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2021
Company Notes 2021 2021 2020 2020
£'000 £000 £'000 £'300
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 157 324
Investment propeties 15 1,622 1,522
Right of use assets 25 774 993
Investments 16 1,757 441
Deferred tax asset 27 - 500
14,210 3,780
Current assets
Inventories 20 1,979 11,940
Trade and other receivables 21 411,757 364,941
Cash and cash equivalents 5106 338
418,842 377,219
Total assets 433,052 380,999
Current liabilities
Trade and cther payables 22 (40.409) (45,059)
Leases 25 {226) (194)
{40,635) {45,253)
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 24 (46,031) (252,402)
Leases 25 (568) (816)
(46,599) (263,218)
Total liabilities (87.234) (298,471)
Net assets 345,818 82,528

——————




LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

AS AT 30 JUNE 2021

Company Notes 2021 2020
£000 £'000

Equity

Share capital 28 - -

Share premium 28 294,857 -

Capitat contribution 28 280,000 280,000

Retained earnings 23 (229,039) (197,472)

Total squity 3453818 82,528

As permitted by s408 Companies Act 2008, the company has not prasented its own income statement and related
notes. The company's loss for the yaar was £31,567,000 (2020: £52,429,000 loss).

The accompanying notes on pages 24 - 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

nancial statements were approved by the board of directors ark authorised for issue on 17 March 2022 and are
d on its hehalf by:

.

Mr Mark Dickinson
Director
Company Registration No. 08221003
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LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Consolidated Share Share Capital Retained Total Non- Total
capita) premiurn cantrib- aamings controlling controlling equity
ution interest interest
£000 £000 £'000 £'600 £'050 £060 £’000
Balance at 1 July - - 280,000 (249,937} 30,063 3,926 33,989
2019
Year ended 30
June 2029:
Total comprehensive - - - (100,402) (100,402} (3,169) {103,571)
loss
Balance at 30 June - - 280,000 (350.339) (70,339} 757 (69,582)
2020
Year ended 30
June 2021:
Issue of share - 294 857 - ~ 294 857 - 294 BR7
capital (note 28)
Total comprehensive . - - (90,299) (90,298) {614) (80.913)
loss
Disposal of - - - - - (143) (143}

subsidiary (note 13)

Balance at 30 June

2024 - 294,857 280,000 (440,638) 134,219 - 134,219

The accompanying notes on pages 24 - 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Caompany

Balance at 1 July 2019

Year ended 30 June 2020:
Total comprehensive loss

Balance at 30 June 2020
Year ended 30 June 2021:
Issue of share capital (note 28)
Total comprehensive loss

Balance at 30 June 2021

Share Share Capital  Retained Total
capital premium contribution - eamings- equity
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000

- - 280,000 . (145,043) 134,957

- - - (52,429) (62,429)

- - 280,000 (197.472) 82528

- 294,857 - - 294,857

, - - (31.567) (31.567)

- 204,857 280,000 (229,039) 345818

The accompanying notes on pages 24 - 52 form an integra! part of these financial statements.
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LIFESTORY GRQUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Consclidated

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated/{absorbed} by operations
Interest and issue casts paid

Net cash outflow from operating activities

investing activities

Purchase of property, piant and equipment
Cash transferred on disposal of subsidiary
Froceeds on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Net cash used in Investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from bomrowings
Repayment of borowings

Loans from parent undertakings
Loans from related parties
Repayment of related party loans
Repayment of leases

Net cash generated from financing
activities

Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenis at beginning of
year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Notes

30

2021
E'0D0

{34)
(8

16,221
(73,114)
63,680
18,000
(1,000)
{352)

2021
£'000

19,587
(24,965)

{5,378)

(39

23435

18,018

9429

27439

2020 2020

£°000 E'000

(46,470}

(27,539)

{74,009)
{181)
142

(43)
4B5 148
(458,098)
47,200
(367)

73,883

(175)

9,596

9.421
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LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

1.1

Accounting policies

Company information

Lifestory Group Limited (“the company") is a private company limited by shares incorporated in the United
Kingdom and registered in England and Wales. The registered office is 105-107 Bath Road, Cheltenham,
Gloucestershire, GL53 7PR.

The group consists of Lifestory Group Limited and all of its subsidiaries.

The principal accounting policies appled in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Basis of preparation
The group financial statements consolidate those of the company and its subsidiaries {together referred to
as the “group™). The company financial statements present information about the company as z separate

entity and not about its group.

The group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international
accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008. The group and
company financial statements have been prepared under historicai cost convention as modified for
financial assets and liabilities at fair value as set out below.

The company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 (Financial Reporting
Standard 101} 'Reduced Disclosure Framework' as issued by the Financial Reporting Council as the
company meels the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 (Financial Reporting Standard 100).

As permitted by FRS 101, the company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under
that standard in relation to financial instruments, presentation of a cash flow statement and certain related

party transactions.

The financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, which is the functional and presentation currency
of the group and the company. Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest

£'000.

As permitied by s408 Companies Act 2006, the company has not presented its own income statement and
related notes. The company's loss for the year was £31,567,000 (2020: £52,429,000 loss).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exarcise its judgament in the process of applying the group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 3.
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LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

1.2

13

Accounting policies {continued)

Basis of consolidation

All business combinations, including those involving entilies under common control, are accounted for by
applying the acquisition method. Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as
at the acquisition date, which is the date on which control is transferred to the group.

The corisideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the hiabilities incurred to the former awners of the acquiree, and the equity interests issued by the group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangament. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabiliies and contingent lisbilifes assumed in a
husiness combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The group recognises any non-controliing inlerest in the acquirea on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controliing interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree's identifiable nat assets. Acguisition related costs are expensed as incumed.

Subsgidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controiied by the group. The group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has
rights 1o, variable relums from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those relums through
its power ovet the entity. In assessing control, the group takes into consideration potential voling rights that
are currently exercisable.

The acquisition date is the date on which contro) is transferred to the acquirer. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until

the date that control ceases.

Consolidation of & subsidiary begins when the company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the company loses contro! of the subsidiary. Specifically, the results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in profit ar loss from the date the company gains confrol until the date when the
company ceases o control the subsidiary.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unreaiised income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are gliminated. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but cnly
to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Going concerrm

In assessing the going concem position of the group and company, the directors have conducted a rigorous
assessment of the group's ability to operate for the foreseeable future. This assessmentincluded an in-depth
review of the group cash flow forecasts taking into considetation the latest aperating environment. A base
casa scanario was prepared against which the directors expect to deliver, over which a number of dewnside
sensitiviies were overlaid to forecast the impact of reasonably possible outcomes. In order to address the
reasonably worst-case scenaric and 1o support continued growth of the business. the directors have
determined that a further £27m of funding is required in fhe foreseeable future.

In consideration of the mitigations available to the Group, the Directors acknowledge that the group has a
£62m loan facility with its sister company, Anthology Group Limited. The loan term is 3 years and ends in
March 2024, On 30 June 2021 the foan was £17m, and up to 28 February 2022 a further £44im had been
drawn, bringing the loan balance to £61m. At the date of this report there have been no further drawdowns.
The directors, who are common to both groups, with two of Anthology Group's directors also being Lifestory
Group directors, will manage the flaw of funds from Anthclogy Group Limited ta Lifestory Group Limited. This
will provide up fo £1m of additional funding for Lifestory Group Limited under the intet-group facility. The
directors have assessed the ability of Anthology Group Limited, through sensitised cash flow forecasts, o
provide the required leve! of cash funding as and when required by Lifestory Group Limited. The directors
were satisfied that sufficient funding would be available as required.
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LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

1.3

14

1.5

Accounting policies (continued)

Going concern {continued)
Further funding is expected within Lifestory Group from certain funding events over the next 12 months that
have not yet been concluded at the date of signing this report. Those events are:

« the completion of a £50.0m develcpment lcan for three new sites in Lifestory Group Limited that
supports the delivery of these sites over the next 18 months. At the date of this repont, terms have
been agreed with the lender for this facility and will be subject to lender diligence and credit
committee approval. This is expected to complete within 1 month of the date of this report

s« The sale of rental properties totalling £30.5m to a UK entity which is under common control within
the Fund managed by Oakiree Europsan Principal Fund IIl. This is expected to complete within 1
month of the date of this report.

« A £24.0m refinance of a completed development, with a stock loan replacing developer finance.
Loan terms from lenders have been received and the facility is expected to be in place within 2
months of the date of this report.

= A development loan to be put in place which will release £10.5m of funding. The development loan
is for five new sites in Lifestory Group Limited that supports the delivery of these sites over the next
18 months. At the date of this report, terms are being discussed with lenders.

These matters are all in the normal course of trading for the group and reflect the ongoing treasury activities
at the current point in time. The business is very experienced in closing these transactions and considers ail
of these items to be low risk. As a result, the directors balieve that the going concern basis of preparation is
appropriate in these financial statements. However, given these have not yet concluded at the date of
approval of these financial statements, they, in combination, create a material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt on the group and company’s ability to continue as a going concern which in furn may result
in the group and company being unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course

of business.

Revenue
Revenue is generated from sale of individual residential homes, land, freeholds and leaseholds.

Revenue for all revenue streams is recognised upon legal compietion of contracts at which point the group’s
performance obligations are met. Revenue is recognised at the agreed contract price which is typically due
on legal completion.

Revenue arises solely in the UK and is stated net of value added tax.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost, net of

depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as o write off tha cost of assets less their residual values over their useful lives
an the foliowing bases:

Machinery and vehicles 5 years
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 5 years
Computers and software 3 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference betweenr the sale proceeds
and the carrying value of the asset and is recognised in the income statement.
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LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

1.7

1.9

Accounting policies (continued)

Investment properties

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals andior for capital appreciation, is initially
recognised at cast, which includes the purchase cost and any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequently
it is measured at cost less provision far impairment. impairments to investment properties are recognised
within administrative expenses,

Non-current investments
in the parent company financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are initially measured at cost and

subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Iknpairment of non-currvent assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in Circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverabie. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset's camying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assat’s
fair value less costs of dispesal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely independent cash inflows (cash-generating units).
Prior impairments of non-financial assets are reviewed for possible reversal at each reporting date.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Costs comprise land and development
costs. Net reafisable value is based on estimated selling price fess cost to completion and disposal.
impairments and impairment reversals are recognised in cast of sales.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short tem highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Financial instruments

Financiaf assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial position when the group
or company becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are only offset, and the net amount reported in the consalidated statement of financial position and
staterment of comprehensive income, when there is a currently enforceabie legal right ta offset the recognised
amounts and the group of campany intends to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and ligbility
simultaneously,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable lo the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial fiabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial labilities at fair value through prafit ot loss are
recogniséd immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All recognised financial assels are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair
value, depending an the classification of the financial assets. The group or company's financial assets consist
of financial assets at amortised cost and derivative financial instrumenis.

27



LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED])

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments {continued)

Classification of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following condifions are measured subsequently at amortised cost using

effective interest rate method:

* The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to callect contractuai cash flows; and

¢ The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

fmpairment of financial assets

The group or company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial assets that
are measured at amortised cost which comprise mainly trade receivables and intercompany receivables. The
amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition of the respective financial instrument The group or company always recognises lifetime
ECL on trade receivables and intercompany receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision matrix based on the group or company's historical credit joss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debters, general econemic conditions and an assessment of both
the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money

where appropriate.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date a contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). The respective fair value
movements ara reflected within the statement of comprehensive income as other gains and losses. The
group or cempany's derivative financial instruments comprise the Hackwooed option (note 19).

Derecognition of financial assels

The group or company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the group or company neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the group or company
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
graup or company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the group or company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds recaived.

Financial liabilities

The classification of financial liabilities at initial recognition depends on the purpose for which the financial
liability was issued and its characteristics. All purchases of financial liabilities are recorded on trade date,
being the date on which the group or company becomes party to the contractual requirements of the financial
liability. Unless otherwise indicated the carrying amounts of the group or company's financial liabilities
approximate to their fair values. The group or company's financial liabilities consist of financial labilities
measured at amortised cost.
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1.1

1.12

Accounting policies {(confinued)
Financial instruments {confinued)

Financial liabilities measured subsequently at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination, (if} held
for trading, or (jii) designated as at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), are measured subsequently at
amorlised cost using the effective interest methed. The group or company's financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost comprise trade and other payables, and Jaans and borrowings. The effective interest method
is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial assetfiability and of allocating interest
income/expense over the ralevant periad. The effective interest rate is the rate thatdiscounts estimated futtire
cash receipts/payments through the expected life of the financial assel/liability or, where appropriate, a
shorter peried.

Drerecagnition of financial liabilities

A financial Rability {in whole or in part) is derecognised when the group or company has extinguished its
contractual abligations, it expires or is cancelled. Any gain or loss on derecognition is taken to the statement
of camprehensive income.

Equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the company are treated as equity only to the extent that they do not meet
the definition of a financial liability. Crdinary shares are classified as equity and are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Taxation
Tax on the profit or loss comprises curent and deferred tax, Tax is recognised in the income statement
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case il is recognised in

equity.

Current tax

Current tax is the expecled tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the period, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previnus periods.

Deferred tax

Defetred tax is provided on temporary differences between the camying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounls used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantiveiy enacted at the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. Aliability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under shorl-term cash
bonus if the group or company has a present legal or canstructive obligation to pay this amount as a resulk
of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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Accounting policies (continued})

Retirement benefits
A defined contribution pension plan is a post-employment beneft plan under which the group or company
pays fixed contributions intc a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive abligation to pay further

amounts.

Obligations for contnbutions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the
income statement in the periods during which services are rendered by employees. Differences between
confributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments
in the statement of financial position.

Leases
The group accounts for a contract, or a portion of a contract, as a lkease when it conveys the right to use an
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Leases are those contracts that satisfy the following
criteria:

» There is an identified asset;

« The company obtains substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset; and,

* The company has the right to direct use of the asset.

The group considers whether the supplier has substantive substitution rights. If the supplier does have those
rights, the contract is not identified as giving rise to a lease. in delermining whether the group obtains
substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset, the group considers only the economic benefits
that arise frorn use of the asset. In determining whether the group has the right to direct use of the asset, the
group considers whether it directs how and for what purpose the asset is used throughout the period of use.
If the contract or portions of a contract does not satisfy these criteria, the group applies other applicable IFRSs
rather than IFRS 16.

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the contractual payments due to the lessor over the
lease term, with the discount rate determined by reference lo the rate inherent in the lease unless this is not
readily determinable, in which case the group’s incrementat borrowing rate on commencement of the lease
is used, Variable lease payments are only included in the measurement of the lease liability if they depend
on an index or rate. In such cases, the initial measurement of the lease liability assumes the variable element
will remain unchanged throughout the lease term. Other variable lease payments are expensed in the period
to which they relate.

On initial recognition, the carrying value of the lease liability alsc includes:
*  Amounts expected to be payable under any residual value guarantee;
« The exercige price of any purchase oplion granted in favour of the company if it is reasonably certain

{o assess thal option; and,
* Any penalties payable for terminating the lease, if the term of the lease has been estimated based

on termination option being exercised.

Right of use assets are initially measured at the amount of the lease liability, reduced for any lease incentives -
received, and increased for:

+ Lease payments made at or before commencement of the lease;

¢ Initial direct costs incurred; and,

s The amount of any provision recognised where the group is contractually required to dismantle,
remove or rastore the leased assat.

Subsequent to initial measurement lease liabilities increase as a result of interest charged at a constant rate
on the balance outstanding and are reduced for lease payments made. Right-of-use assets are amortised
oh a straightine basis over the retnaining term of the lease.
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1.47

Accounting policies {continued)

Leases (continued)

When the group revises its estimate of the termn of any lease (because, for example, it re-assesses the
prabability of a lessee extension or termination option being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the
lease liability to reflect the payments to make over the revised term, which are discounted using a revised
discount rate. The carrying value of lease liabilities is similarly revised when the variable element of future
lease payments dependent on a rate or index is revised, except the discount rate remains unchanged. In
both cases an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use asset, with the revised
carrying amount being amortised over the remaining (revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the fight-
of-use asset is adjusted to zero, any further reduction is recognised in profit or loss.

The group did not have any finance leases,

Cperating lease income
Operating lease incame is recognised in line with lease agreements. Lease incentives are recagnised over

the life of the leasa.
Change in accounting policy
Impact of initial application of other amendments to IFRS Standards and Interpretations

in the cumrent year, the group has applied a number of amendments to IFRS Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (|ASB) that are effective for an annual period that
begins on or after 1 January 2020. Their adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on
the amounts reparted in these financial statements.

New and revised IFRS Standands in issue but not yet effective
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRS Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective.

*  Amendments to LAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

» Amendments lo IFRS 3 - Reference to the Conceptual Framework

* Annual Impravements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle - Amendments ta IFRS 1 Firsttime
Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards, IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, IFRS 16
Leases

s Amendments to |JAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 - Disclosure of Accounting Policies

« Amendments to IAS 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimates

The directors do not expect that the adopticn of the Standands listed above will have a materia! impact on the
financial statements of the group in future periods.

Critical judgements and key 8ources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the group and campany's accounting policies, the directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilites that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the periad in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future pericds where the ravision affects both cument ang future
periods. :
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3 Critical judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued}

Critical judgements
The following judgements (apart from those involving estimates) have had the maost significant effect on

amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Recognition & subsequent derecognition of subsidiary

Hackwood Homes Limited has previously been recognised under the acquisition method despite the
company holding 33.3% of the ordinary share capital, givan the company has an unrestricted aption to
acquire the remaining 56.7% of share capital and therefore has unreslricted potential voting rights over 100%

of the company.

On 4 March 2021 Hackwood Homes Limited entered administration, on this date It was derecegnised as a
subsidiary by the group. This is because the group deemed this a loss of cantrol as the unrestricted option
{o acquire the remaining 56.7% would no longer obtair unrestricted voting rights over 100% of the company
and there was no intention or ecanomic benefit to exercising the aption.

Going concern

The directors have judged it appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going ¢oncern basis. In
drawing that cenclusion, they have made judgements in selation to the occurrence of specific events within
twelve maonths of the date of approval of these financial statements. Further details on those judgements are

provided in note 1.3.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The estimates and assumptions which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amount of assets and liabilities are as follows.

Carrying value of inventories and estimation of casts fo complete and achievable revenues
Inventories are stated at the fower of cost and net realisable value. Such inventories include land, work in
progress and completed homes. Residential development is largely spaculative by nature, and it is nomal
that not all inventories are covered by forward sales contracts. To assess the net realisable value of land
held for development and sites in the course of construction and completed sites, the group maintains a
financial appraisal of the likely revenue which will be generated when these inventories become rasidential
retirement properties for sale and are sold. Where the financial appraisal demonstrates that the revenue will
exceed the costs of the inventories and other associated costs of constructing the residential retirement
properties, the inventories are stated at cast. Where the projected revenue is lower, the extent to which thare
is a shortfall is written off through the statement of comprehansive income leaving the inventories stated at
net realisable value. To the extent that the revenues which can be generated change, or the final cost to
complete for the site varies from estimates, the realisable value of inventories may be different.

Appraisals laking into account estimated achievable revenues, actual inventory, and costs to complete as at
each reporting date, have been completed and identified an impaiment of £20,755,000 (2020 £32,555,000)
and a reversal of a previous impairment charge of £681,000 (2020: £nil). These estimates were made by
management having regard to actual sales prices, togethar with competitor and marketplace evidence.
Should there be a future significant decline in UK house pricing, impairments of land, work in pregress and
compieled sites may be necessary. Further detail on the value of inventories is in note 20.

Deferred tax
Management assesses whether there will be sufficient future profits to utilise deferred tax assets recognised

by reference to the estimated profits generated by the sites where planning has been granted, construction
has commenced or are completed, based on the appraisals noted above. The current year position has been
arrived at by undertaking the assessment of future profits and applying an appropriate future iax rate, over a
future period of three years. These assessments indicated there would not be sufficient future taxable profits
against which some of the losses could be relieved. Accordingly, there is no deferred tax asset (2020:

£500,000) recognised by the group and company.

32



LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

3 Critical judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Carrying value of intercompany balances held by the company

Intercompany balances held by the company against fellow group members are subject to an annuaij
assessment as to their recoverability. To assess the recoverable amounts from receivable balances held, the
group maintains a financial appraisal for each entity within the group. Where the financial appraisat
demonstrates that the discounted cashfiows generated will exceed the intercompany payable then no
impairment is required on the intercompany receivable held by the company. Where the projected discounted
cashflaws are less than the intercompany payables, the extent to which there is a shertfall is written off in the
company through the statement of comprehensive income. Following the assessment, a tolal impaimment of
£4,851,000 (2020: £nil) was recognised in the company's profit and loss.

4 Revenuea

Revenue in the year represents income from sale of sheliered accommodation for the elderly as well as land
and freehold title sales. 11 arises entirely in the United Kingdom.

Revenue can be analysed as fallaws:

2024 2020

£'000 £000

Legal completions on retiremeant property 81,576 78.020
Land sales 18,640 11,577
101,216 89,597

Of the above £nil (2020: £131,000) relates to discentinued aperations, see note 13.

Contract assets and liabilities

Contract assets arise when the group has right to consideration in exchange for residential nousing that it
has transfarred to a customer but not yet invoiced. The group did not have any contract assets at the reporting
date (2020; none),

Contract liabilities arise when a cuslomer pays consideration in advance before the residential housing is
transfemed to the customer. The group did not have any contract liabilities at the reporting date (2020: none).

5 Other operating income
2021 202p
£'000 £'000
Rental income 1,203 687
Other income 31 25
Related party service agreement 2,687 -
3,921 938

Related party service agreement relates to a service recharge charged to sister company London Real Estate
Development Limited. Further detail can be found in note 29.
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6 Operating loss

Operating loss for the year is stated after charging/{crediting):
Depreciation of owned property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of right of use assets

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense

Inventories impairment losses recognised

Raversal of previous inventory impairment charges

Impairment of investment property

202
£'000

201
258
97,388
20,755
(681)
1,583

2020
£000

630
293
82,700
32,555

During the year the group received furlough payments of £109,000 (2020: £472,000). The deferral of PAYE
and national insurance contributions, which forms part of the UK government's Covid 19 support initiative

was valyed at £nil (2020: £1,424,000).

7 Auditor's remuneration

Fees payable to the company’s auditor and associates:

For audit services
Audit of the financial statements of the group and company
Audit of the financial statements of the company's subsidiaries

For other services
Taxation compliance services
Other taxation services

8 Employees

2021 2020
£'000 £000
144 93
188 157
332 250
54 53
77 16
131 69

The average manthly number of persons (including directors} employed by the group during the year was:

Administration
Sales

Their aggregate remuneration comprised:

Wages and salaries
Sacial security costs
Pension costs

2021 2020
Number Number
111 165
49 48
160 213
Group
2021 2020
£000 £°000
11,284 13,863
1,522 1,838
350 412
13,156 16,053
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9 Directors’ remuneration
Group
2021 2020
£'000 £:008
Remuneration for qualifying services 889 1,404

Remuneration disclosed above includes the following amounts paid to the highest paid director;

2021 2020
£000 £'000
Remuneration for qualifying services 83g 849

No directors were enrolled in any money purchase pension schemes during either the current of priar year,
During the year compensation for loss of office amounted to £nil (2020: £32C,000).

10 Retirement benefit achemes
2021 2020
E£'000 £'000
Defined contribution schemes
Charge to profit or loss in respect of defined contribution schemes asp 412

A defined contribution pension scheme is operated for all qualifying employees. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the group in an independently administered fund.

At the reporting date, contributions amounting to £76,000 (2020: £51,000) were payable to the scheme and
are included within other payables (note 22).

11 Finance costs

2021 2020

£'000 £'000

Interest payable on bank loans 25,155 27,842

Interest payable on other loans and leases 82 109
Amortisation of bank facility costs 6853 8,728

Interest payable te group undertakings 7,608 12,856

Interest payable to related parties 198 -

33,896 47,535

Of the above £47,000 (2020: £13,000) relates to discontinued operations, see note 13.
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12 Taxation

2021 2020
£000 £'000
Current tax
UK corporation tax an profits for the current pericd (191} -
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (541} -
Total current tax ¢redit (732) -
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences {70} (392)
Change in recogrised deferred tax assets 500 (500}
Change in recognised deferred tax liabilities {84) -
Total deferred tax 346 (892)
Total tax credit (386) (892)

The actual charge/(credit) for the vear can be reconciled to the expected charge for the year based on the
profit or loss and the standard rate of tax as follows:

From continuing operations 2021 2020
£000 £'000
Loss before taxation (89 501) {102,608)
Expected tax credit based on the standard rate of corporation tax in the (17,005) (19.496)
UK of 19.00% (2020: 19.00%)
Change in recognised deferred tax assets 500 (500)
Unrelieved tax losses 17,005 18,496
Short-term temporary differences (70) (392)
Taxation chargef{credit) 430 (892)
From discontinued operations 2021 2020
£'000 £°000
Lass beforg taxation (1,798) (962)
Expecled tax credit based on the standard rate of corporation tax in the (342} (183}
UK of 19.00% {2020: 19.00%}
Change in recognised deferred tax liabilities (84) -
Unrelieved tax losses utilised (541) 183
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable 151 -
profit
Taxation credit (816) -
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13

Discontinued operations

On 4 March 2021, Hackwood Homes Limited entered administration, at this date the Group no longer
recognised Hackwood Homes Limited as a subsidiary and it was derecognised from the consolidated set of
financial statements. As a result of its administration process the operation was considered discontinued.

The results of the discontinued operations, which have been included in the loss for the year, were as follows:

2021 2020

£°000 £'000
Revenue - 131
Cast of sales (682) -
Gross (loss)/profit (682) 131
Administrative expenses {1,004) {1,080)
Loss on disposal (65) -
Operating loss (1,751) (949)
Finance costs (47} (13)
Loss before taxation (1.798) (962)
Tax on loss 816 -
Loss for the financial year (982) (862)

In the above, the group has recognised its share of the loss totalling £65.000 that arose on the disposal of
Hackwoad Homes Limited.

Hackwood Homes Limited had the fallowing impact on the consalidated cash flow statement; net cash outfiow
trom operaling activities of £2,746,000, net cash inflew from investing activities of £628,000, and net cash
inflow from Ffinancing activities of £1,990,000, with a total decrease in cash of £127,000 for the period to 4
March 2021.

The 2020 comparative figures included in the statement of total comprehensive income was represented,
with the £962,000 removed from continuing operations and presented as a loss from discontinued operations.
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14 Property, plant and equipment

Group Machinery Flxtures, fittings Computers Total
& vehicles & equipment & software

£'000 £’000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 July 2019 1,624 1,380 2,608 5612
Additions - 31 160 191
Disposals (265) {17 - (282)
Al 30 June 2020 1,359 1,394 2,768 5,521
At 1 July 2020 1,358 1,384 2,768 5,521
Additions - 1 33 34
Disposal of subsidiary {1,171} (533) {78} (1.782)
AL 30 June 2021 188 a62 2723 3.773
Depreciation
At 1 July 2018 979 823 2,155 3,857
Depreciation charge 126 209 295 630
Disposals {140} - - (140)
At 30 June 2020 965 1,032 2,450 4,447
At 1 July 2020 965 1,032 2.450 4,447
Depreciation charge - 11 190 201
Disposal of subsidiary (779) {187) (58) (1.034)
At 30 June 2021 186 846 2,582 3,614
Carrying amount
At 30 June 2021 2 16 141 159
At 30 June 2020 3584 362 118 1,074
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14 Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Gompany Fixtures, fittings Computers Total
& equipment & software
£'060 £'060 £'co0
Cost
At 1 July 2019 626 2548 3174
Additions 18 157 175
Al 30 June 2020 644 2,705 3349
At 1 July 2020 544 2,705 3,349
Additions 1 18 19
Disposals - _ _
AL30 June 2021 845 2,723 3,368
Depreciation
A1 July 2019 601 2111 2712
Depreciation charge 24 289 313
At 30 June 2020 625 2,400 3,025
At 1 July 2020 625 2,400 3025
Depreciation charged 11 175 186
At 30 June 2021 636 2575 3211
Carrying amount
At 30 June 2021 ) 9 148 157
At 30 June 2020 ] 308 324
15 Investment properties
Group Company
_ £'000 £000
Valued at cost less impairment
A1 July 2019 7,583 1,682
Additions 8,081 -
Disposals (3.034) (60)
At 30 June 2020 12,630 1,522
Additions 26,774 -
Disposals (3,952) -
Impairment losses (1.583) -
AL 30 June 2021 33,869 1522
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15

16

investment properties (continued)
investment properties comprise £1,522,000 (2020: £1,522,000]) of residual interests in sold properties wherg
there is no set redemption date and no rent or inlerest is charged, and £32,343,000 (2020: £11,108,000) of

invesiment properties which are fully owned and ranted out.

The fair value of investment properies within the group at 30 June 2021 was £33,869,000 (2020;
£12,630,000) and the company was £1,522,000 (2020: £4,5622,000). For investment property of residual
interests, the fair value is calculated using the UK house price index, then applying this to the cost of the
investment and factoring when acquired.

Far investment properties rented oul, the fair value and the recoverable value is determined by rentals yields,
which is calculated using the cutrent bock value and estimated annual rental income for 12 months, This
rental yield is compared to the benchmark UK market yields for equivalent propesty, which is calculated using
latest market reporis published by reputable property valuers. If the rental yields are lower an impaiment
position is identified, and the book value would be written down until the required yield level is mel In the
current year an impairment of £1,583,000 (2020: £nil) was charged in the year. This was recognised and is
presented in the total comprehensive income statement within administrative expenses. Investment
properties of £32,343,000 (2020; £11,108,000) have been pledged as security for centain of the group's
borrawings and tfrade and other payables.

Total rental income earned in the year from investment properties was £1,203,000 (2020: £687,000). Direct
operating expenses arising from investment property that generated rental income was £292,000 (2020:
£179,000). Direct operating expenses anising from investment properiy that did not generate rental income
was Enil (2020: £nil).

Investments
Notes Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Investments in subsidiaries 17 - - 11,757 441

The company has investments in subsidiary undertakings as listed in nole 17. All subsidiaries are included
in the consolidated financial statements of Lifestory Group Limited.

Movements in non-current investments
Shares in group

Company
undertakings
£'000
At 30 June 2020 441
Acquisitions 11,316
Disposals -
At 30 June 2021 11,757

On 23 June 2021 PegasusLife Property Holdings Limited transferred its £1 share capital relating to a 100%
sharehalding in PegasusLife Cobham Limited to Lifestory Group Limited. The consideration for this transfer
totalled £11,316,000.

On 4 March 2021 Hackwood Homes Limited was derecognised from tha Group. Hackwood Homes Limited
entared administralion and Lifestory Group Limited lost centrol of the subsidiary at this date. Hackwood
Homes Limited was hekd indirectly through Pegasuslife Renaissance Holdings Limited. Al the date of
derecagnition Hackwood Homes Limiled had net assets of £207,000. With a share of 33.3% of these net
assets a loss on disposal of £65,000 has been recognised in the loss from discontinued operations in the
statement of comprehensive income.
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17

Subsidiaries and related undertakings

At 30 June 2021, the company had investments in 100% of the ordinary share capital of the following
subsidiaries, all of which are incarporated in the UK and have a registerad address of 105-107 Bath Road,

Cheltenham, Gloucestershire, GL53 7TPR:

Name Principal Control
activity

PegasuslLife Reraissance Holdings Limited Holding company Direct T
All of us (Care) Limited Helding company Direct
Pegasuslife Group Limited Halding company Direct |
PegasusLife Cobham Limited Property development Direct |
Pegasuslife Development Limited Property development Indirect |
PegasusLife Lyndhurst Limited Propetty development Inctirect
PegasusLife Development (Bartrams) Limited Property development Indirect
PegasusLife Development (G8R) Limited Property deveicpment {ndirect
Pagasuslife Development (Westminster) Limited | Property development Indirect ]
PegasusLife Development - {QWH) Limited Property development Indirect
All of us {Development) Limited Property development Indivect
Helicon Management Limited Management of real estate Indirect
Pegasus Life Limited Holding company Indirect
PegasusLife Holdings Limited Holding company Indirect
Pegasuslife Landlord Limited Holding company Indirect
PegasusLife Rental Limited Letting and real estate operations | Indirect ]
Lifestory Development Holdings Limited Holding company Direct 4
Lifeslory Development Land Limited Propenty development Indirect
Lifestary Development (Woobum Green) Limited | Property development Indirect ]
Lifestory Develapment {Cranleigh) Limited Property development Indirect
Lifestory Development (West Byfleet) Lirnited Property development indirect
Lifestory Development (Bath) Limited Property development Indirect
Lifestary Development {Quonians) Limited Property development Indirect
Pegasuslife Landlord - Crowthome Limited Letting and real estate operations | indirect
PegasusLife Landlord - Rustington Limited Letting and real estate operations | Indirect
PegasusLife Landlord Ace Sandbanks Limited Lefting and real estate operations | Indirect
PegasusLife Landlord The Landing Limited Letting and real estate operations | Indirect ]
Pegasuslife Landlord Carriages Limited Letting and real estate operations | Indirect
PegasusLife Landlord Chaptar House Limited Letting and real estate operations | Indirect ]
PegasusLife Landlord Woodlands Limited |etting and real estate operations | Indirect
Pegasuslife Landiord Horisley Limited Letting and real estate operations | Indirect
Pegasuslife Landlord Chapelwood Limited Letling and real estate operations | Indirect
Pegasuslife Landlord No. 79 Fitzjohns Avenue Letting and real estate cperations | Indirect
Limited
PegasuslLife Landlord Steepleton Limited Letting and reaf estate gperations -| Indirect
PegasuslLife Landlord - Sandhurst Limited Letting and real estate operations | Indirect By
PegasusLife Landlord - Leyton Road Limited Letting and real estate operations { Indirect
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17 Subsidiaries and related undertakings

PegasusLife Praperty Holdings Limited

Name Principal Control
activity
Pegasuslife Landlord JOH Limited 1 etting and real estate operations Indirect
PegasuslLife Landlord - Marina Gardens Letting and real estate operations Indirect
Limited
PegasusLife Landlord - Moors Nook Limited Letting and real estate operations Indirect
PeagasusLife Landiord - Belle Vue Limited Letting and real estate operations Indirect
Pegasuslife Landlord The Vincent Limited Letting and real estate operations Indirect
{ PegasusLife Landlord - The Fitzroy Limited Letting and real estate operations Indiract
! PegasusLife Landlord Wildemesse House Letting and real estate operations Indirect
Limited
PegasusLife Landlord One Bayshill Road Letting and real estate operations Indirect
Limited
Pegasuslife Landlord Chimes Limited Letting and real estate operations Indirect
Renaissance Freehald Limited Letting and real estate operations Indirect
Lifestary Customer Operations Limited Management of real estate Indirect
Fleur De Lis Tea Rooms Christchurch Limited | Unlicensed cafe Indirect
Renaissance Retirement Limited Property development Indirect
Renaissance Assets Limited Property development Indirect
PegasusLife Landlord - Holmwood Limited Letting and real estate operations Indirect
PegasusLife Landlord - Poole Limited Letting and real estate operations Indirect
Pegasusl.ife Landlord - Vivere Limited Letting and real estate operations Indirect
PegasusLife Landlord - Taylor Place Limited l.etting and real estate operations Indirect
PegasusLife Landlord - Kingsbury Grove Letting and real estate operations Indirect
Limited
Pegasuslife Landlord - Bourne End Limited Letting and real estate operations Indirect
PegasusLife Landlord - Wimborne Limited Letting and real estate operations Indirect
PegasuslLife Landlord - Babbacombe Limited | Letting and real estate operations Indirect
PegasusLife Property Limited Holding company Indirect
Holding company Indirect
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18 Subsidiary companies audit exemptions

The following graup entities are exempt from the requirements of the Companigs Act 2005 relaling to the
audit of their individual accounts for the year ended 30 June 2021 by virtue of section 479A and section 479C
of tha Campanies Act 2008

PegasusLife Lyndhurst Limited (Registration number. 10304225)

PegasusLife Renaissance Holdings Limited (Registration number: 10304306}
PegasusLife Cobham Limited (Registration numbes: 10670355)

PegasusLife Davelopment {Bartrams) Limited (Registration number. 10468855)
PegasuslLifa Development (OBR) Limited (Registration number: 10470894)
PegasusLife Development (Westminster) Limited (Registration numbear: 10416531}
PegasusLife Development - {QVH) Limited (Registration number: 10421199)
Ali of us (Care) Limited (Regisiration number: 08731746)

All of us (Development) Limited (Registration number: 09732947)

Pegasuslife Limited (Reqgistration number: 08569232}

PegasusLife Holdings Limited {Registration number: 09553221}

PegasustLife Landlord Limited (Registration number: 08804304

PegasuslLife Property Limited {Registration number: 11698628)

PegasusLife Group Limited {Registration number: 11787441

Fleur De Lis Tea Rooms Christchurch Limited (Registration number: 09243990)
Renaissance Retirement Limiled {Registration number: 3259684)

Lifestory Development Heldings Limited (Registration number.13028782)

8 & 8 4 & & W e S TS G o

19 Derivative financial instruments

The group acquired a call option to purchase the remaining 66 7% interest in Hackwood Homes Limited. The
call option is exercisable at any tme at the discretion of Lifestory Group Limiled, expiring on the earlier of the
5th anniversary of the acquisition on 21 December 2017 and an IPQ within the group.

The fair value of the Hackwood Option is Enil (2020: £nil} calculated on the assumption that since the
company has entered administration the Jevel of EBITDA generated by Hackwood over the option petiod is
not expected to be sufficient to place the option in-the-money. Accordingly, the option is forecast to be out-
of-the-money and has £nil value.

20 Inventories
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Completed homes 330,990 350,526 - -
Work in progress 157,089 172,685 - -
Land 25,379 78,946 1,979 11,940
513,458 602,137 4,979 11,940

Inventories of £499,394,000 (2020; £565,002,000) have been pledged as security for certain of the group's
borrowings and trade and other payables. The company has not pledged any of its inventory as security for
the company's borrowings (2020: £nil). Cost of invenlory recognised as an expense during the year was
£97.388,000 (2020- £82,700,000).
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21 Trade and other receivables
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 399,606 383,386
Amcunts owed by related parties (note 29) 2,574 - 11,017 -
Other receivables 4,485 4,182 5§30 844
Prepayments 1.587 1,984 604 711
8,646 6,166 411,757 364,941

The directors consider that the carrying values of trade and other receivables approximate their fair value.

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand, unsecured and are non-interest
bearing.

More detail on amounts owed by related parties can be seen in note 29.

22 Trade and other payables

Group Company
2021 2020 201 2020
£000 £'000 £°000 £000
Current
Trade payables 5,985 9,775 1,301 2772
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 32,715 37,359
Other payables 2,168 4,213 2,065 1,955
Aceruals 26,213 13,334 4,338 2973
34,366 27,322 40,409 45,059

The directors consider that the carrying values of rade and other payables approximate their fair value,

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand, unsecured and are non-interest
bearing.

The average credit period taken for trade purchases by the group is 28 days (2020: 31 days). For the
company, this was €1 days (2020. 42 days).

23 Qther payables

Group Company
201 2020 201 2020
£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000
Non-current
Other payables 13,250 13,250 - -

Other payables relate to loan exit fees on the Sculptor facility which will ba payabte an 4 July 2023,
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24 { oans and borrowings
Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000

Bank loang 368,557 428,526 - -
Issue costs {13,872) {20,185) - -
Loans from parent undertakings 28,833 252,402 28,833 252,402
Leans from related parties 17,198 - 17,188 -
401,716 660,743 46,031 252,402

Payable within one year - - - -
Payabie after one year 401,716 660,743 46,031 252,402

The loans from parent underiakings incur annual inlerest of 6% and are due for repayment an the eanier of
30 September 2025 and the date on which OCM Luxembourg EPF Il 8.a.r.l. ceases %o hold, directly or
indirectly, mare than 50% of the issued share capital in, of business assets of, the company.

QOn 9 March 2021, the group entered into a £35,000,000 loan agreement with its sister company, Anthology
Group Limited. On 25 June 2021 this facility was increased to £42,000,000. The loan is unsecyred, repayable
on 8 March 2024, and attracts interest of 5.00%. On 7 December 2021 the facility was increased to
£62,000,000.

Bank loans comprise:

Sculptor Petrel Investment 8.3.r.l. -

A £525,000,000 loan facility with Sculptor Petrel Investment 5.4.r.\. was agreed on 28 June 2012 with the
first drawdown made on 4 July 2019. It has a 4-year term ending 4 July 2023 and incurs annual interest of
5.45% gbove LIBOR for 3 years, then increases to 6.5% in year 4. The option to extend the term by 1 year
is available to the company and this would incur interest of 5.75%. The loan is secured by way of a first
charge over the assels of PegasusLife Developments Limited, Renaissance Assets Limited and Pegasusl.ife
Rental Limited, and a debenture over the shares of PegasusLife Group Limited.

Daiwa Loan

On 23 June 2021, the group entered into a £9,475,000 loan facility agreement with Daiwa Capital Markets
Europe Limited, 1t is a 15-month facility, is secured against certain land sites within the group and attracts
interest at 6.75% per annum.
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25 Leases

Group

Right of use assets

At 30 June 2020
Ameortisation

On disposal of subsidiary

At 30 June 2021

Group

Lease liabilities

At 30 Jure 2020

Lease payments made
Unwinding of a discaunt
On disposal of subsidiary

At 30 June 2021

Current
Non-current

Company

Right of use assets
At 30 June 2020
Amortisation

At 30 June 2021
Company

Lease liabilities
At 30 June 2020

Lease payments made
Unwinding of a discount

At 30 June 2021

Current
Naen-current

Leasehold
Property
Total
£'000

1,085
(258)
(653)

774

(2,026)
352
(82)
862

(794)

(228)
(568)

(754)

Leasehold
Property
Total
£°000

993
(218}

774

(1,010
261
(45)

(794)

{226)
{568)

(794)
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Financial instruments

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000
Carrying amount of financial assets
Trade and other receivables 7,059 4,182 411,153 364,230
Cash and cash equivalents 27,439 9,421 5,106 338
Carrying amount of financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost 449,332 660,737 86,440 46,069

The company does not have any financial instruments measured st fair values. The group holds the
Hackwood cption at fair value of £nil (2020: £nil}. Financial instruments not measured at fair values include
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and barrowings.

The camying values of the group's and campany's financial instruments approximate their fair values.
No collateral is held as security for the group'’s and company's financial assets.
Al the reporiing date thare were no trade receivables which were past due but not impaired (2020; Enil).

Credit risk

Credit risk refars to the risk that 2 counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the group. The group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and
obtaining sufficient collateral where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
defaults. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are tanks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Given the nature and legal framewerk of the UK housing industry the group has a low level of exposure to
cradit risk.

Market risk

Financial risk management
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity
prices will affect the group’s income or the value of its heldings of financial instruments.

Exposure to market risk
The group has no material exposure to foreign currency risk as all purchases and firance are cumently

denominated in sterling.

The group is only exposed to the risk of interest rate movements on the non-fixed rate bank lending
outstanding at the reporting date. The directars constantly review tha necessity to hedge this risk of
movements in LIBOR but the exposure is not currently expected to be material. Whare loans are at a variable
rate and an increase in this rate will have a material impact on retums, sujtable financial instruments are used
lo limit this exposure. Leans are regularly reviewed to assess if fixing the interest would be prudent, based
on the term of the loan cutstanding and view of the current market.

£52,713,000 (2020: £253,402,000) of the group's borrawings is at fixed rate with £362,614,000 (2020:
£428,526,000) at varable rate. A 1% movement in LIBOR would cause an increase in interest of £3,626,000
per annurm.
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26

27

Financial instruments (continued)

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the exposure fo interest rates movements on the non-fixed rate bank lending outstanding
at the reporting date. The group constantly reviews the necessity to hedge this risk of movements in LIBOR.
Where loans are at variable rates and an increase in this rate will have material impact on retums, suitable
financial instruments would be used to limit this exposure.

Liquidity risk management

The group manages liguidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borowing
facilities, by centinuously monitoring forecasts and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity prefiles
of financial assets and liabilities.

Details of additional undrawn facilities that the group has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk are set
out below.

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£°000 £000 £'000 £'000
Bank and related party loan facilities with
maturity dates through to 2024
- Amounts used 386,643 414,609 17,000 -
- Amounts unused 188,832 110,381 25000 -
576,475 525,000 42,000 -

Capital risk management

The group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the group will be able to continue as a going concem
while maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
group's overall strategy remains unchanged from 2020.

The capital structure of the group consists of net debt (berrowings disclosed in note 24 after daducting cash
and bank balances) and equity of the group (comprising issued capital, share premium, capital contributions
and retained earhings as disclosed in the statement of changes in eguity).

The group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Deferred taxation

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the group and company, and
movements thereon:

Group Liabilities Liabilities Assets Assets
2021 2020 2021 2020

£'000 £000 £'000 £000

Tax losses - - - 500
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 154 - .
- 154 - 500
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28

Deferred taxation {continued)

Company Liabilities Liabilities Assets Assets
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £'000 £000 £'000
Tax losses - - - 500
Movemants in the year are shown below
Movements in the year: Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £'000 £000 £°000
At July 20 {348) 546 {500) -
Dabit/{credit) to profit or loss {continuing
operations) 430 (892) 500 {500)
Debit/(credit) to profit or loss {(discontinued
operations) (84) - - -
At 30 June 21 - (346) - {5000

Deferred tax liabilities relate to temporary differences arising on fair value adjustments on acquisitions.

At the reporting date, the group had unused losses of £331,853,000 (2020: £242,352,000}) available to offset
againsl future profits. The company had unused losses of £264,343,000 (2020: £238,127,000). Based on the
probable taxable profits available in the foreseeable future, being 3 years, based on the current sites with
planning permission under construction or completed, a deferred tax asset has not been recognised on these
losses (2020: £500,000). Unrelieved tax losses have no expiry date.

Share capital and reserves

Group and Company

Ordinary share capital
Issued and fuily paid
3 {2020: 1) ordinary shares of £1 each

Group &
Company

2021

Group &
Company
2029

The company has one cfass of ordinary shares which carry no rights ia fixed income.

Cn 29 January 2021 OCM Luxembourg Pegasus Holdings S.A.R L., capitalised £294 857 000 in loans to
new share capital. Two new ordinary shares of £1 were issued and a share premium arcse of £294,856,998.

The group's and company's reserves comprise:

Share premium: Share premium represenis amounts subscribed for share capital in excess of neminal vaiue.

Capital contribution: The capital contribution raserve represents capital contributions received from a parent

undertaking.

Retained earnings: Retained earnings comprise all other net gains and losses and transactions with owners

{e.g., dividends) not recognised elsewhere.
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Related party transactions
Transactions between the company and its subsidiaries have been eliminated an consolidation and are not

disclosed in this note. Transactions with other related parties are noted below:

The company purchased goods from the Naked Grape Wmne Limited of which C. Comptan-Goddard is a
director. The transactions fo the value of £nil (2020 £3,000} were undertaken in the year and £nit balance
was outstanding at year end (2020: £nil).

The graup made purchases in the year of £1,250,000 (2020: £16,009,000) from Hackwood Homes Limited.
The group also advanced loan finance of £nil {2020: £3,615,000) to Hackwood Homes Limited. Al the year-
end, a balance of £69,000 (2020: £1,277,000) was owed from Hackwood Homes Limited which is inciuded
in amounts due from related parties.

The company made purchases in the year of £nil (2020: £3,285) from Hackwood Homes Limited. The
company also advanced loan finance of £nil (2020: £3,615,000) to Hackwood Homes Limited. At the year-
end, a balance ot £8,512,000 {2020: £8,548,000) was owed from Hackwood Homes Limited which is included
in amounts due from related parties. In the previous year this balance was included in amaunts due from
subsidiary undertakings as Hackwood was previously a subsidiary.

Antholegy Group Limited group companies have a director in common with Mark Dickinson; and are under
the same control as Lifestory Group. The company recharged £2,687,350 (2020: was recharged £522,000)
for services to, and £134,031 for costs incurred on behaif of, London Real Estate Development Limited
{LRED). A further £224,515 was recharged to the group by LRED for costs incured on the group’s behaif.
At the year-end £2,076,258 (2020: owed £522,000) was due from LRED. The company was recharged Enil
(2020: £130,000} for services by Anthoiogy Group Limited ang £130,000 (2020: £130,000) was outstanding
at the year-end. The company recharged £158,026 (2020: £nil) for casts incurred on behalf of Anthology
Deptford Foundry Limited and £158,026 (2020: £nil) was outstanding al the year-end. The company
recharged £198,195 (2020: £nil) for costs incurred on behalf of Anthology Hale Works Limited and £198,185
(2020: £nil) was outstanding at the year-end. The company recharged £71,451 (2020: £nil) for costs incurred
on behalf of Anthology Hoxton Press Limited and £71,451 (2020: £nil) was outstanding at the year-end, The
company recharged £38,224 (2020: £nil) for costs incurred on behalf of Anthology Stratford Mill Limited and
£38,224 (2020: £nil) was outstanding at the year-end. The company recharged £92,723 {2020 £nil) for costs
incurred on behalf of Anthology Wembley Parade Limited and £32,723 {2020: £nil} was outstanding at the

year-and,

On 9 March 2021 the Group entered into a £35,000,000 loan agreement with sister company, Anthalogy
Group Lirnited, on 25 June 2021 this facility was increased to £42,000,000. During the year Anthology Group
Limited provided loan finance of £18,000,000 (2020: £nil) to the company and group during the year, of which
£1,000,000 (2020. Enil} was repaid. At the year-end £17,198,000 (2020: £nil) of the loan finance was
outstanging. During the year interest was charged at a fixed rate of 5.00% being £198,000 (2020: £nil). The
loan is unsecured, repayable on 9 March 2024,

QCM Luxembourg Pegasus Holdings S.4.r.l., the immediate parent undertaking, provided a loan finance of
£63,700,000 (2020: £47.200,000) lo the company and group during the year. During the year QCM
Luxembourg Pegasus Holdings §.4.rl. acquired 2 ordinary shares for consideration of £294,857 000 which
was settled via the intercompany account. At the year-end £28,833,000 (2020: £252,402,000) of the loan
finance was outstanding. During the ysar interes! was charged on this loan finance of £7,608,000 (2020:

£12,860,000).

Key management personnel
Key management personnel are considered to be solely the directors, Their remuneration is disclosed in note

8.
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30 Cash absorbed by group operations

2021 2020

£000 E'000

Loss for the year after tax {90,913) (103,571)

Adjustments for:

Taxation {credited) (386) (892)

Finance costs 39,886 47,535

Amortisation of right of use assets 258 293

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 201 630

Impairment of inventories and investment property 24,657 32,555
Movements in working capital:

Increase/{decrease) in inventories 45,784 (8,503)

(Increase) in trade and other receivabies (5,577) (776)

Increase/{decrease) in trade and other payables 8,667 (13,741}

Cash generated/(absorbed) by operations 19,587 (46,470)

3 Analysis of changes in net debt - group

1 July Cash Non-cash 30 June

2020 flows changes 2021

£'000 £'000 £'0006 £000

Cash at bank and in hand 9,421 18,018 - 27.439

Borrowings (660,743) (23787} . 282814 (401,716)

Leases (2.026] 352 880 (794)

(653,348) {5.417) 283,694 (375,071)

Included within nron-cash changes is an acquisition of shares by parent company, CCM Luxembourg Pegasus
Holdings S.A.R.L., of £284,857,000 that was settled via intercompany account.

32 immediate and ultimate controlling party

The immediate halding company is OCM Luxembourg Pegasus Holdings S.A.R.L, a company registered in
Luxembourg and the ultimate holding company and contrelling party is Brookfield Asset Management Inc., 2

company incorporated in Canada.

Brockfield Asset Management Inc. is the parent of the largest group, of which Lifestory Group Limited is a
member,-to prepare group financial stalements. The group financial statements can be obtained from its

registered address: Suite 300, Brookfield Place, 181 Bay Street, Toranto, Ganada M5J 2T3.
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Events after the reporting date

On 13 September 2021 the 126-home development in Portishead achieved planning for a change of use and
was sold to a housing association for £27,80C,000.

OCn 16 September 2021 41 rented properties were transferred for a value of £15,000,000 to a newly formed
business outside of the Lifestory group but with a common uMtirnate parent company. At the same time a
framework agreement was completed to allow all future rented homes to be transferred to this same entity,
subject to cartain criteria being met. The letting agency business operated by Lifestory witl continue to provide
latting services for the purchaser,

On 14 October 2021 the group completed the acquisition on a site in Lymington for £4,800,000.

On 15 Octaber 2021 the group completed a development loan for three sites at Bath, Wooburn Green, and
Cranleigh, with Cheyne Capital Limitad with a facility totalling £40,000,000 with a repayment date of April
2024.

On 29 November 2021 the group completed the acquisition on a site in Lichfield for £2,900,000.

On 7 December 2021, the company increased the facility with sister company, Anthology Group Limited to
£62,000,000.

On 8 February 2022 the Midas group entered administration. Midas was a main contractor for one of our
completed sites however only ractification work remained cutstanding, and management has assessed that
the impact to the group is insignificant, and the works will be completed by Lifestory on a construction
management basis.
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